
 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 

 

 
Planning Commission Meeting 

6:30 PM Thursday, February 11, 2016 

Village Administration Building 

99 High Street 

South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

 

 Agenda Item 

1. Election of Officers 

2. Call to Order 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Open Forum 

6. Review and Approval of Minutes 

 A. Minutes of November 24, 2015 
  

7. Public Hearing – None 

8. Old Business   

A. 15-01P - Modifications to Site Plan for Country Attic Treasures LLC 

9. New Business 

A. Case 16-01P: Preliminary Plat Application for Rivers Crossing South Subdivision. 

 

10. Communications 

11. Adjournment 

 

Members of the public may address the Planning Commission during the Open Forum segment of 
the agenda and shall be limited to five minutes each.  After the speaker concludes remarks, the 
Planning Commission may comment or ask questions at that time.  The Chairperson may at his or 
her discretion restrict duplicate testimony on a particular subject. 

 



 
Village of South Lebanon 

99 N. High Street, South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

513-494-2296       fax: 513-494-1656 

www.southlebanonohio.org 

 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 
MEETING MINUTES 

November 24, 2015  
5:30 p.m. 

 
Members:       Staff: 
Tom Hunshe       Jerry Haddix, Administrator 
Skip Lawhorn       Molly Corwin, Clerk 
Dennis Rees 
Steve Riley 
Darrick Zucco 
 
 
1. Call to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call.  All present except Dennis Rees(absent) 

: 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4. Open Forum –  Nobody present to speak 

 
5. Review and Approval of Planning Commission Minutes from September 14, 2015.  Motion 

to approve was made by Tom Hunshe, seconded by Skip Lawhorn.  All yeas. 
 

6. New Business: Case 15-07P: Application for Lots Splits of Lots 15 & 16 of Fredericks Stand 
Subdivision. Recommended Approval by Jerry Haddix. Discussed lot line. Motion to 
approve was made by Skip Lawhorn, seconded by Darrick Zucco. All yeas.  

 
7.  Motion to adjourn. Skip Lawhorn made the motion; Steve Riley seconded. All yeas.  
  

 
 

 
 

              
Darrick Zucco -Chairman    Molly Corwin – Clerk  

http://www.southlebanonohio.org/


VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 
 
RE: Case 15-01P, Revision to Site Plan Review for Country Attic Treasures LLC 
 
DATE: February 9, 2016 

 
 
On the agenda for the February 11th meeting is a revision to the site plan for Country Attic Treasures 
LLC to be located at the northeast corner of the intersection of Lebanon Road and Corwin Nixon 
Boulevard (the “Project”) submitted by Scott Ready, the owner of Country Attic Treasures LLC (the 
“Applicant”). 
 
Background 
The Project that is the subject of the application is located at the northeast corner of Lebanon Road 
and Corwin Nixon Boulevard. The present zoning classification is B-1 Neighborhood Business 
District. 
 
On June 1, 2015, the Planning Commission conditionally approved the site plan submitted by Country 
Attic Treasures LLC for the construction of a retail store at 260 Corwin Nixon Boulevard. On June 
10, 2015, all conditions for approval were met and the Zoning Administrator issued a zoning permit 
for the property. 
 
On February 5, 2016, Scott Ready, the owner of Country Attic Treasures LLC, submitted a request to 
install a 3-board fence on the outside of the parking area and a sliding gate at the entrance. The gate 
would be only opened during operating hours. 
 
Zoning Code Analysis 
Upon reviewing the request, fencing is allowable on commercial developments per the Village 
Commercial Design Guidelines and Standards and Zoning Code. Gating of commercial developments 
is not specifically addressed in the Zoning Code or the Design Standards. 
 
Zoning Process 
Pursuant to Article 18 of the Village Zoning Regulations, any modification to a site plan that doesn’t 
meet the definition of “minor” per Section 15.18.15 of the Village Zoning Code as determined by the 
Zoning Administrator shall require Planning Commission approval. The requested modifications do 
not meet the definition of “minor”. Therefore, the Planning Commission must review the requested 
changes. 
 
Staff Analysis 
Based on the information provided, the fencing portion of the request would adhere to the Village 
Design Guidelines as well as providing a barrier between the parking lot and Dry Run located on the 
west side of the property. The 3 board fence would also enhance look of the building from the street 



especially in the Fall and Winter when there is no natural vegetation barrier between Lebanon Road 
and the site.  
 
With respect to the proposed gate, the Applicant, citing security concern, is seeking permission to 
install a sliding gate to limit access to the property during non-operating hours. Although the Zoning 
Code does not specifically address this item, Sec. 15.18.21.8 Standards for Site Plan Approval that “all 
buildings or groups shall be so arranged as to permit convenient and direct emergency vehicle access.” 
The installation of a gate, whether locked or unlocked, would impede access to the property by 
emergency vehicles and personnel.  
 
Recommendation 

A. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission grant its approval to fencing portion of the 
request with the following conditions: 

 
1. Review and approval of fence materials by the Zoning Administrator prior to installation; 
2. Breaks in the fence every fifty (50) feet, per the Village Commercial Standards and 

Guidelines; 
3. Setback from property line to allow for landscaping; and 
4. Apply for Zoning Permit to install fence. 

 
B. Staff recommends denial of the gate portion of this request. 

 
Attachments 
Site Plan Modification Request 
 











VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 
 
RE: Case 16-01P, Preliminary Plat - Rivers Crossing South 
 
DATE: February 9, 2016 

 
 
On the agenda for the February 11th meeting is Case #16-01P, is a preliminary plat for the Rivers 
Crossing South property (the “Property”) submitted by HPA Development (“developer”) on behalf 
of Lebanon Mason LLC (the “Owner”). 
 
Background 
The Property was previously a manufacturing facility for Cincinnati Milacron. In 1996, Cincinnati 
Milacron sold the property to Vickers. In 1999, Siemens Energy & Automation. In 2003, MMMilgrove 
Road LLC purchased the property. Up until this point, the property had been zoned I-1 Industrial. In 
2003, the Village Council approved the rezoning of 47.972 acres of the property to R-3 PUD 
Residential, Single or Multi Family. The developer subsequently went “belly up”. In 2013, Lebanon 
Mason LLC purchased the entire 111.49 acres. On November 11, 2015, the Village Council, upon the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission, approved the rezoning of 76.810 acres of the property 
from R-3 PUD & I-1 to R-3 per Ordinance 2015-11.  
 
The Applicant and their representatives have met with Village staff and the Village Engineer for a 
required pre-application meeting to review the development prior to submittal of a preliminary plat.  
 
Code Analysis 
Pursuant to Section 15.20.4 in the Village Zoning Regulations, after the pre-application stage, the 
developer shall submit a preliminary plat of the proposed subdivision.  
 
Zoning Process 
The Planning Commission on its own initiative or upon petition by a citizen or neighboring property 
owner may, prior to action on a preliminary plat of a subdivision, hold a public hearing thereon at 
such time and upon such notice as the Commission may designate.  There has been no such request 
made by a citizen or adjacent property owner. 
 
The Planning Commission shall forward copies of the preliminary plat to such officials and agencies 
as may be necessary for the purpose of study and recommendations. After receipt of reports from 
such officials and agencies, the Commission shall determine whether the preliminary plat shall be 
approved, approved with modifications or disapproved.  The preliminary plat has been sent to the 
following officials and agencies for review and comments: 
 

 Warren County Soil & Water Conservation District 

 Warren County Tax Map Department 



 Duke Energy 

 Warren County Sheriff, South Lebanon Post 

 Union Township Fire & Rescue 

 Kings Local School District 
 
We have received comments from Warren County Soil & Water Conservation and the Union 
Township Fire Department (see attached). It is not unusual for these officials and agencies to not 
comment on a preliminary plat.  The preliminary plat is sent to them primarily out of courtesy to make 
them aware of new developments in the Village. 
 
The Village Engineer has reviewed the preliminary plat and its comments are included in a checklist 
report attached hereto. 
 
The developer has submitted a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) for the development which justifies the 
improvements at the intersection with Mason-Morrow-Millgrove Road. 
 
The preliminary plat was submitted of January 26, 2016. Per the Village Zoning Regulation, the 
Planning Commission shall act on the preliminary plat within thirty (30) days after filing. The Planning 
Commission can either: 1) approved; 2) approve with modification; or 3) disapprove the preliminary 
plat. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission grant its approval of the preliminary plat for Rivers 
Crossing South subdivision with the following conditions: 
 

1. Address the comments/concerns of the Union Township Fire Department with the exception 
of item #4 re: re: hydrant placement. This item is addressed in the Village Water Design 
Standards; 

2. Ensure adequate sediment and erosion control measures are used during construction per the 
Warren County Soil & Water Conservation District email attached; 

3. Submit a plan/timetable for demolition of the existing buildings on the property; and 
4. Ensure compliance with any applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation 

 
 
Attachments 
Planning Commission Application 
Agency comments 

 



















Flood Zone "X"

Issue Date:

Checked By:

Drawn by:

Drawing:

Sheet:

P
lo

t t
im

e:
  J

an
 1

5,
 2

01
6 

- 4
:0

0p
m

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 J
:\2

01
3\

13
R

05
0-

00
0\

P
L\

D
W

G
\1

3R
05

0-
00

0 
P

P.
dw

g 
- L

ay
ou

t T
ab

: P
1.

0 
TI

TL
E

Ite
m

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

D
rw

n:
C

hk
:

w
w

w
.b

ay
er

be
ck

er
.c

om

M
as

on
, O

H
  4

50
40

 - 
51

3.
33

6.
66

00
69

00
 T

yl
er

sv
ill

e 
R

oa
d,

 S
ui

te
 A

PRELIMINARY PLAT
UNION TOWNSHIP

VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON

RIVERS CROSSING SOUTH
WARREN COUNTY, OHIO

SECTIONS 1 & 7, TOWN 4, RANGE 3

LAND PLANNER/ENGINEER/

BAYER BECKER
6900 TYLERSVILLE ROAD, SUITE A
MASON, OHIO 45040
PH: (513) 336-6600

OWNER/DEVELOPER

P1.0
DRAWING NO.

INDEX OF SHEETS

P2.0
TITLE SHEET
PRELIMINARY PLAT

01/18/2016
ISSUE DATE REVISION NO. REVISION DATEDRAWING TITLE

01/18/2016

GENERAL NOTES
1. PROPOSED USE OF THE LOTS IS SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENCES.
2. A 15' UTILITY EASEMENT WILL BE PROVIDED ALONG ALL RIGHTS OF WAY.
3. MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:  35'
4. PROPOSED COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THIS SUBDIVISION ARE YET TO BE DETERMINED.
5. ALL PUBLIC WATER MAINS TO BE 8" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. WATER TO BE CONNECTED TO SOUTH

LEBANON SYSTEM .
6. ALL SANITARY SEWER MAINS TO BE 8" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. SANITARY SEWER TO BE CONNECTED

TO SOUTH LEBANON SYSTEM .
7. STORM SEWER MAIN TO BE MINIMUM OF 12" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. CULVERT UNDER EXISTING

"STREET A" TO BE MAINTAINED AND/OR REPLACED AS NECESSARY TO MEET PUBLIC STANDARDS.
8. THE DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE FOR THIS SUBDIVISION IS YET TO BE DETERMINED. THE PROJECT WILL BE

DEVELOPED IN PHASES.
9. ALL PUBLIC ROADWAYS WITHIN THE DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE LOCAL STREETS AS DEFINED IN THE

THOROUGHFARE PLAN.
10. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE UNDERGROUND. ELECTRIC SERVICE, CABLE TELEVISION, TELEPHONE AND GAS

SHALL BE INSTALLED IN A JOINT TRENCH.

PROJECT SUMMARY
EXISTING ZONING: R-3
PROJECT AREA: 54.12 ACRES
USE: SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENTIAL
TOTAL LOTS: 127

LEBANON MASON, LLC.
4020 KINROSS LAKES, SUITE 200
RICHFIELD, OH 44286

SURVEYOR

NOTES

ON THE SIDE OF THE ROAD WITH THE
WATER MAIN PLASTIC TUBING SHALL
BE 20'+/- LONG & EXTEND 23' BEHIND
CURB TO CLEAR TELEPHONE &
ELECTRIC EASEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR
SHALL PLACE 2"X4" OR LARGER
POSTS, PAINTED BLUE AT BOTH ENDS
OF PLASTIC CONDUIT.

#6 REBAR - CONTRACTOR SHALL
INSTALL 2 #6 REBAR 5' LONG
VERTICALLY AT ANGLE VALVES.

WATER SERVICES TO BE LOWERED
WHEN CONFLICT WITH STORM SEWER
OCCURS.

LEGEND
ITEM 448-(1 1

2") ASPHALT CONCRETE SURFACE
COURSE

ITEM 448-(1 1
2") ASPHALT CONCRETE LEVELING

COURSE

ITEM 407-TACK COAT
MS-2, RS-1, OR RC-250

ITEM 301-2 (2 1
2") COURSES

BITUMINOUS AGGREGATE BASE

ITEM 203-SUB GRADE COMPACTION

TYPE "C" CURB & GUTTER (WARREN COUNTY
STANDARD)

PROVIDE (4") MIN. TOPSOIL SEED & MULCH OR
SOD.

ITEM 608-(4") THICK CONCRETE SIDEWALK  TO
BE 1

2" HIGHER THAN SOD.

EXISTING PAVEMENT.

TYPICAL LOT - AS PER R-3 ZONING
FRONT SETBACK:  25'
REAR SETBACK:  30'
SIDE YARD SETBACK:  6' ONE SIDE / 16' TOTAL
MINIMUM LOT AREA:  6,000 SF
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE:  40%

PH: (513) 404-6401

JANUARY, 2016

TYPICAL STREET SECTION

STREET 'A' TYPICAL SECTION

I-71

SR
 4

8
-MILLGROVE

MASON-MORROW

TURTLECREEK

KINGSVIEW

ZOAR

SR 48

LITTLE MIAMI RIVER

http://www.bayerbecker.com


Flood Zone "X"

Issue Date:

Checked By:

Drawn by:

Drawing:

Sheet:

P
lo

t t
im

e:
  J

an
 1

5,
 2

01
6 

- 4
:0

1p
m

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 J
:\2

01
3\

13
R

05
0-

00
0\

P
L\

D
W

G
\1

3R
05

0-
00

0 
P

P.
dw

g 
- L

ay
ou

t T
ab

: P
2.

0 
P

P

Ite
m

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

D
rw

n:
C

hk
:

PROPOSED LOTS
PROPOSED SETBACKS
PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY
PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT
PROPOSED SIDEWALK
PROPOSED WATERLINE
PROPOSED STORM SEWER
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

LEGEND

w
w

w
.b

ay
er

be
ck

er
.c

om

M
as

on
, O

H
  4

50
40

 - 
51

3.
33

6.
66

00
69

00
 T

yl
er

sv
ill

e 
R

oa
d,

 S
ui

te
 A

NOTES
1. STREET 'A' WILL UTILIZE THE EXISTING DRIVE.

THIS DRIVE WILL BE DEDICATED AS A PUBLIC
ROAD WITH A MODIFIED SECTION PER THE
TYPICAL SECTION ON SHEET P1.0.

2. SEE THE TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR LANE
CONFIGURATIONS AND ROADWAY
IMPROVEMENT AT THE INTERSECTION OF
MASON-MORROW-MILLGROVE ROAD AND
STREET 'A'.

3. OPEN SPACE TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED
BY THE HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

http://www.bayerbecker.com

